RENESAS

RC32504A / RC22504A

The RC32504A / RC22504A evaluation board (EVB) is designed to help users evaluate the RC32504A and RC22504A Clock Generators, also known as FemtoClock 2. The RC32504A supports Jitter Attenuator and Synthesizer functionality, and the RC22504A supports only Synthesizer functionality.

When the evaluation board (EVB) is connected via USB to the user's computer running the Renesas' RICBox[™] Software, FemtoClock 2 can be configured and programmed to generate frequencies with bestin-class performance. FemtoClock 2 has four output pairs that can be programmed to CMOS style, LVDS style, or HCSL style outputs.

Features

- Develop configurations with Renesas RICBox software and upload to the EVB through USB
- Can be powered from the USB connection
- EVB is a combination evaluation with Renesas Low Noise power supply regulators and Renesas Low Noise fan-out buffer
- Clock output pairs are AC coupled and can be connected directly to test equipment through coax cables.

Board Contents

- Renesas RS32504A ultra-low noise synthesizer and jitter attenuator
- Renesas RAA214020 low-noise power supply regulators
- Renesas 8P34S1208I low-noise fan-out buffer
- FTDI FT232HQ USB-to-I2C bridge



Figure 1. RC32504A / RC22504A Board

Contents

1.	Func	Functional Description			
	1.1	Connecting the Board to a Computer	3		
	1.2	Board Power Supply	4		
	1.3	Differential Output Termination Selectors	4		
	1.4	Miscellaneous Selectors	5		
	1.5	On-Board Crystal	7		
	1.6	Bypassing the Fan-Out Buffer at OUT0	7		
	1.7	Setup and Configuration	8		
2.	Board Design12				
	2.1	Schematic Diagrams	15		
	2.2	Bill of Materials	17		
3.	Ordering Information19				
4.	Revision History19				

Figures

1. Functional Description

1.1 Connecting the Board to a Computer

The evaluation board can be connected to a computer via the USB connector (see Figure 4). This board has a USB-C type connector. The on-board USB-to-I2C bridge (FTDI chip) handles the data communication, and the +5V in the USB bus powers the on-board regulators. Using a bench power supply with the VDD jacks is optional. The board can fully function with just the USB cable to a computer.

Renesas' *RICBox Software* can control the RC32504A on the board. RICBox is compatible with both the onboard USB-to-I2C bridge and the Aardvark adapter. RICBox uses a software wizard for entering the overall configuration and has several tools to fine tune the configuration (e.g., block diagram GUI).

The Bus Source connector J30 can be used to select the source of the communication bus. The bus will be I2C for most communication but can also be SPI for specific tests. Pins 1 and 2 in J30 are SDA and SCL from the FTDI chip. Pins 3 and 4 pass the SDA and SCL to the I2C level shifter. To use the on-board FTDI chip, install jumpers on pins 1-3 and 2-4. The board will be shipped with these jumpers installed. Theoretically, any I2C adapter can be connected to pins 3 and 4 for SDA and SCL. Pin 6 can be used as the ground connection for the I2C connection. Pins 3, 4, 5, and 6 are arranged such that an Aardvark connector can be plugged onto pins 3, 4, 5, and 6 only (see Figure 5).

The Bus Type connector J33 is added to allow bypassing the I2C Level Shifter in case the connection type is SPI. For default I2C operation, jumpers are installed on pins 1-3 and 2-4.



Figure 4. Communication Path Block Diagram



Figure 5. Connect Aardvark Adapter to J30

In Figure 14 the Aardvark adapter communicates with the RC32504A and the FTDI bridge chip is disconnected. USB can still be used to power the board.

1.2 Board Power Supply

The power source for each VDD pin can be selected with jumpers. The voltage for each pin, except one, is 1.8V. The exception is VDDD, which can be powered with 1.8V or 3.3V.

The power source can be either an on-board voltage regulator or the VDD_J jack. Most power source selectors have only two choices, 1.8V from the on-board 1.8V regulator or connect to the VDD_J J21 jack. The jack can connect to a bench supply; this connection can be useful, for example, to measure supply current into pins.

In Figure 2 the source for the pin VDDXO is chosen to be the on-board 1.8V regulator. The two pins on the bottom are both connected to the VDDXO pin through a power filter. The top left pin is connected to the on-board 1.8V regulator and the top right pin is connected to the VDD_J jack.



Figure 2. Power Source Selector Example

In Figure 3 the source for the pin VDDD is chosen to be the on-board 3.3V regulator. J25 allows three choices for VDDD: 1.8V, 3.3V, or the VDD_J jack. The three pins on the right are all connected to the VDDD pin through a power filter. The top left pin is connected to the on-board 3.3V regulator, the mid left pin is connected to the on-board 1.8V regulator, and the bottom left pin is connected to the VDD_J Jack.



Figure 3. Power Source Selector for VDDD

1.3 Differential Output Termination Selectors

Each of the four differential output pairs can be programmed to LVDS, HCSL, or CMOS logic type. CMOS is a single-ended logic type and the output pair will essentially be two CMOS outputs of the same frequency. HCSL is the most versatile output because it can be customized. The HCSL driver is a current driver that simply turns a current on and off. Standard HCSL turns 15mA on and off to make 750mVpp swing in 50Ω termination.

The RC32504A HCSL driver can be programmed to drive 4mA to 19mA levels. When AC coupled, the HCSL driver can be compatible with LVDS, CML, and LVPECL signal swing requirements. Because of the output architecture, it needs a DC coupled termination to ground to drive the current into. The circuit at each output splits the termination into a DC part and an AC coupled RF part. The RF part is connected to the SMA edge connectors of each output and the DC part is controlled by the termination selectors.



Figure 4. Termination Bias Jumpers

Figure 4 shows J36 for applying DC load to OUT0. When HCSL is selected and the on-chip termination is disabled, a jumper must be placed to provide the required DC load to ground. No jumper is needed for LVDS or LVCMOS, and when the on-chip termination is enabled with HCSL.

Separating DC load from AC coupled RF load helps increase the signal swing on the SMA connectors for better noise measurements. This method can also be used in the end application when the receiver input has on-chip termination, is AC coupled, and a large signal swing is required.



Figure 5. Termination Bias Schematic

1.4 Miscellaneous Selectors



Figure 6. OE Pin Control

J32 pins 2, 4, and 6 connect together to the OE pin of the RC32504A. Apply a jumper on pins 1 and 2 to pull the OE pin high or on 5 and 6 to pull the OE pin low. The RC32504A can be programmed to pull high or low on the chip so in most cases no jumpers are needed on J32.

A pull-up or pull-down jumper can also be used to latch a specific programmed configuration at power up.

When experimenting with SPI, a jumper can be applied to pins 3 and 4 to pass the CS (Chip Select) signal from the FTDI chip to the RC32504A.



Figure 7. Lock Pin and SDA Pin Latch Control

J34 can be used to latch a specific level on the LOCK pin at power up. J35 can be used to latch a specific level on the SDA pin at power up.

Both are used to select a specific pre-programmed configuration. It is not needed to program OTP of the RC32504A on the evaluation board. Every possible configuration can be set up with RICBox in volatile registers. It is not recommended to attempt to program the OTP memory because of the risk that a mistake or error can destroy the chip.



Figure 8. Buffer Input Select

J48 can be used to select the input source for the 8P34S1208I fan-out buffer. The CLK0 input pair on the buffer is connected to OUT0 of the FemtoClock 2, and the CLK1 input pair is connected to SMAs J46 and J47. By default, the jumper is on CLK0 for passing OUT0 of FC2 through the buffer. Changing the jumper to CLK1 and

another output can be passed through the buffer by connecting a pair of coax cables from that output to the buffer input SMA pair.

The CLK0 input is DC coupled to OUT0 on FC2 to demonstrate a connection with minimum components. OUT0 on FC2 must be configured as LVDS for this to work properly. The 8P34S1208I is an LVDS fan-out buffer.

The CLK1 input is AC coupled, using the buffer VREF for DC bias, to make that input compatible with any differential swing applied to the buffer input SMA pair.

1.5 On-Board Crystal

The evaluation board is assembled with a crystal. The default frequency for the crystal is 60MHz but Renesas can ship the board with a different crystal frequency to better match the specific application where the RC32504A will be used. The default 60MHz crystal is best suited for jitter attenuator applications. Synthesizer applications with output frequencies like 156.25MHz or 312.5MHz work better with a 62.5MHz crystal, or even better, with a 78.125MHz crystal. The crystal footprint U1 has a universal shape to allow assembly of 3.2×2.5 mm and 2.5×2.0 mm size crystals.



Figure 9. Crystal and XIN Input

1.6 Bypassing the Fan-Out Buffer at OUT0

Remove R60 and place at R59. Also remove R61 and place R58. The red rectangles are the new positions. These two resistors are 0Ω and the change will route the OUT0 clock to the J4 and J6 SMA connectors as opposed to the fan-out buffer input in the R60 and R61 positions.

When the fan-out buffer is not used, it is a good idea to remove jumper J49 (VDDFO) to remove power from the fan-out buffer.



Figure 10. OE Pin Control



1.7 Setup and Configuration

Complete the following steps to set up the RC32504A / RC22504A EVB using I2C and start the configuration of the board.

- 1. Connect J31 to a USB port of the user's computer using the USB cable supplied with the board.
- 2. Launch Renesas' *RICBox Software* according to the instructions in the *FemtoClock 2 RICBox User Guide*. The software and guide are downloadable from the <u>RC32504A</u> product page.
- 3. Following the "Getting Started" steps in the *RICBox Software*, an I2C connection is established between the GUI software and the RC32504A.
- 4. Open an existing settings file (click Browse) or start a new configuration (click New).

RICBox – 🗆 🗙									
<u>F</u> ile <u>H</u> elp									
	New	Browse							
Recent Files									
	No rece	nt files							
	No rece	inclues							
Online Documentation									
Renesas Website									
Sales Support									
Technical Support									

Configurations that were saved recently will show in the "Recent Files" box. Double-click on a file to load the configuration.

5. When starting a new configuration, the software first needs to know what product family to load the "Virtual Environment" for:

RICBox		_		×
1. Select Product Family				
FemtoClock2	The FemtoClock2 series of Clock Generators and Jit excellent choice for generating and/or cleaning up near the device being clocked – the 'point-of-use'. 7 size (4x4mm), low power and excellent noise perfor class by itself. RC22504: Clock Generation RC22514: Clock Generation RC32504: Jitter Attenuation RC32514: Jitter Attenuation with internal crystal	noisy clock The combir	signals i nation of	right small
2. Select Product				
8P49N344				
RC22504A				
RC22514A				
RC32504A				
RC32514A				
		Back	0	К

This screen shows only FemtoClock 2 but it is possible to install multiple Virtual Environments for various product families. At item 1, select FemtoClock 2 then select the specific product at item 2 and click "OK".

6. Select the "Operation Mode": Synthesizer or Jitter Attenuator.

RICBox				-		×
<u>File Help</u> Configuring RC32504A		1	of 3 Inpu	ts		v
Crystal Frequency 6 Load Capacitance (pF) 8 Overdrive CLKIN Clock Mode	Attenuator Attenuator Attenuator		CLKIN - Operati Synthes input fr is multi using a PLL (AP frequen can be: Jitter At referen (DPLL) 1 output phase e filtered	Leave floating i on Mode izer - the device om an external a plied to a high fi fractional-feedt LL). A wide rang cicies unrelated ti generated. ttenuator - a sing ce clock drives a chat will monitor frequency and g rror. The phase by a programm dth filter and ap	f not use receives crystal wh requency ack anake e of o the crys gle input digital P the APLI generate a error will able low	its nich og stal LL L a be
Cancel			Previous	Next	Fin	ish
	0	Errors 0	Warnings	RC32504A	Not Conn	ected

On the right are explanations and instructions. Click "Next" to go to the next screen.

7. Screen 2 has a list of Jitter Attenuator settings.

II RICBox	– 🗆 X
<u>File</u> <u>H</u> elp	
Configuring RC32504A	2 of 3 DPLL Y
Configuring RC32504A DPLL Profile jjitter attenuator mode IIII Bandwidth Normal Bandwidth Goal 25Hz Actual: ~23.8203Hz (-4.7189% from goal of 25Hz) Actual: ~23.8203Hz (-4.7189% from goal of 25Hz) Acquire Bandwidth Goal 25Hz Acquire Bandwidth Goal 25Hz Actual: ~222.3227Hz (-11.0709% from goal of 250Hz) Decimator Decimator Bandwidth Goal Decimator Bandwidth Goal 2.5kHz Actual: ~1.9428kHz (-22.2876% from goal of 2.5kHz) Gain Peaking Normal Gain Peaking Goal 0.2 Actual: ~0.1804 (-9.7888% from goal of 0.2) Actual: ~0.1804 (-9.7888% from goal of 0.2) Phase Slope Limit Phase Slope Limit Phase Slope Limit Goal None Phase Slope Limit Goal None Actual: maximum Image: Image	What are Sync profiles? The sync profile drop-down allows for quick configuration of the Renesas timing device for specific ITU-T equipment clock recommendations. Selecting a specific profile will configure the device the same way Renesas tests for ITU-T equipment clock compliance in our labs. Modifications to the configuration can be made, but care must be taken to make sure compliance is not broken. For more complex clock trees, please contact Renesas for additional support. G.8262 EEC1 Sync Profile =================================
Cancel	Previous Next Finish
	0 Errors 0 Warnings RC32504A Not Connected

8. Screen 3 sets up the outputs.

RICBox	- 🗆 ×
<u>File H</u> elp Configuring RC32504A	3 of 3 Outputs
VCO Frequency 10.625GHz Output Clocks (MHz) Output 0 125MHz 2 2 2 125MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 125MHz) [CMOS, Qx Driven, nQx held low] Output 1 156.25MHz 2 2 156.25MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 156.25MHz) [HCSL] Output 2 312.5MHz 2 312.5MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 312.5MHz) [LVDS] Output 3 212.5MHz 2 212.5MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 212.5MHz) [HCSL]	 Minimum is 1MHz. Maximum is 1000MHz for differential and 180MHz for CMOS mode. Enabling and disabling is synchronous to avoid glitches and runt pulses. Entering a blank output frequency will disable and power down the output.
Cancel	Previous Finish
	0 Errors 0 Warnings RC32504A Not Connected

- a. Fill in the desired output frequencies. Leave blank unused outputs.
- b. Click on "Advanced Settings" at the red arrow to select Logic Type and Signal Amplitude.
- c. Click "Finish" to end the Wizard and enter the main configuration utility.
- 9. The main configuration utility.

R R	ICBox				_		×
<u>F</u> ile	<u>H</u> elp						
	RC32504A (RCx25x4A)		Reference				
-F	Driver version						
*	Settings Dash Code						
	Mode						
⊞	Current Mode	AL					
ф	Input XIN/REF	60MHz					
	CLKIN nCLKIN	25MHz 25MHz					
	SysClock						
	Quad sys clock	~221.3542MHz					
	Output Q0 125MHz (-28.0 Q1 Q2 Q3	1492ppt from goal of 125MHz) [CMOS, Qx Driven, nQx held low] 156.25MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 156.25MHz) [HCSL] 312.5MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 312.5MHz) [LVDS] 212.5MHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 212.5MHz) [HCSL]					
	APLL APLL Frequency Divider Loop Bandwidth Phase Margin 3rd Pole Frequency	10.625GHz (-28.0492ppt from goal of 10.625GHz) ~88.5417 ~410.0469kHz 60.47 degrees ~11.052MHz					
	DPLL Enabled DPLL profile DPLL Frequency Divider Normal Bandwidth Acquire Bandwidth Decimator Bandwidth Normal Gain Peaking Acquire Gain Peaking	~11.0524WH2 yes JAMODE (jitter attenuator mode) 10.625GHz 425 ~23.8203Hz (-4.7189% from goal of 25Hz) ~222.3227Hz (-11.0709% from goal of 250Hz) ~1.9428kHz (-22.2876% from goal of 2.5kHz) ~0.1804dB ~0.192dB					
			0 Errors	0 Warnings	RC32504A	Not Con	nected

The buttons on the top left are Control Panel (the above screen), Wizard, Configuration, Registers, and Block Diagram.

For more information, see the FemtoClock 2 RICBox User Guide located on the RC32504A product page.

10. Transfer the Configuration from RICBox into the FemtoClock 2 device:

The bottom right of the screen has buttons to control the I2C connection with the device.



a. Click the "Not Connected" button to connect.

	Program	CONNECT
	Read	
0 Errors 0 Warnings RC32504A	Not Connected	

b. Click the small button to the right of "Program" to connect.The small button next to "Read" opens I2C settings and starts a search for connected devices.

🔝 Connection Settings 🛛 🗙 🗙				
Auto Manual				
🕑 ftdi (0) I2C 0x09	۲			
📀 ftdi (0) SPI	0			
Refresh	Connect			

The "Connection Settings" screen allows you to select a specific device and Connect. After attempting to Connect:

			Program	Θ
			Read	$\Sigma_{\mathcal{C}}^{h_{0}}$
0 Errors	0 Warnings	RC32504A	Connected	

The small Connect button turns green to indicate that the connection was successful. Now click "Program" to transfer all settings to the device.

2. Board Design



Figure 11. RC32504A / RC22504 EVB – Block Diagram

Each differential output clock is available on a pair of SMA connectors. Each pair of SMA connectors is AC coupled on the board. The termination selector can provide a DC path to ground for the HCSL output type when the on-chip termination is disabled.

Power is provided through the USB connection and regulated with RAA214020 low noise LDOs. Each power pin can also be switched to a banana plug jack for supply current measurements or other tests.

The board has an FTDI USB-to-I2C bridge for programming FemtoClock 2 from a computer. Renesas RICBox software is available for easy development of configurations and uploading these configurations to the FemtoClock 2 device.

To demonstrate the use of FemtoClock 2 with fan-out buffers, an 8P34S1208I is added at OUT0 of FemtoClock 2. When the buffer is not desired, the board can be easily modified by moving two 0Ω resistors to pass OUT0 to its own pair of SMA connectors, just like the other outputs. The buffer has one of its two inputs connected to OUT0 and the other connected to an SMA pair so the buffer can always be used to pass a clock from any output through a pair of coax cables.

The LOCK pin drives an LED and the LED lights up when the pin is high. Default function assigned to the LOCK pin is "APLL Lock" so the LED shows if the APLL is locked or not. Several other status items can be assigned to the LOCK pin.



Figure 12. RC32504A / RC22504A Board – Top View

Table 1. RC32504A / RC22504A – EVB Pins and Functions

Note: See Figure 12 for reference numbers in the following table.

Ref.	Name	On-Board Connector Label	Function
1	Output 0	J4, J6	Differential Clock Output 0 (not active with typical assembly)
2	Termination 0	J36	Termination Selector for Output 0 (not active with typical assembly)
3	VDDO0	J18	Power Source Selector for pin VDDO0
4	Output 1	J7, J9	Differential Clock Output 1
5	Termination 1	J37	Termination Selector for Output 1
6	VDDO1	J20	Power Source Selector for pin VDDO1



Ref.	Name	On-Board Connector Label	Function	
7	Output 2	J10, J12	Differential Clock Output 2	
8	Termination 2	J38	Termination Selector for Output 2	
9	VDDO2	J23	Power Source Selector for pin VDDO2	
10	Output 3	J13, J15	Differential Clock Output 3	
11	Termination 3	J39	Termination Selector for Output 3	
12	VDDO3	J26	Power Source Selector for pin VDDO3	
13	LED_5V	D2	LED lights when 5V USB Supply is present	
14	USB Interface	J31	USB-C Type Jack for connection with the user's computer and interaction with Renesas RICBox Software.	
15	LOCK LED	D1	LED lights up LOCK pin goes high. Default the LOCK pin signals APLL locking.	
16	DIF_IN	J2, J3	Differential Reference Clock Input	
17	Power VDD Jack	J21	External Power Supply, Positive Terminal	
18	Power GND Jack	J16	External Power Supply, Negative Terminal or Ground	
19	VDDXO	J19	Power Source Selector for pin VDDXO (Crystal Oscillator Power)	
20	VDDA	J17	Power Source Selector for pin VDDA (Analog Power)	
21	VDDREF	J22	Power Source Selector for pin VDDREF (Ref Clock Input Power)	
22	VDDD	J25	Power Source Selector for pin VDDD (Digital Power)	
23	XIN	J1	Overdrive XIN pin with External Clock	
24	Crystal	U9	Quartz Crystal	
25	RC32504A	U2	Evaluation Device. The RC32504A can also demonstrate RC22504A functionality.	
26	Bus Source	J30	Select Communication Bus Source	
27	Bus Type	J33	Select Communication Bus Type	
28	OE / SPI CS	J32	OE pin Pull-Up / -Down or Latch High / Low or Pass SPI Chip Select	
29	LOCK Latch	J34	Lock pin Latch High / Low	
30	SDA Latch	J35	SDA pin Latch High / Low	
31	GND	GND_J1/2/3/4	Miscellaneous Ground Points	
32	OUT0 Buffer Output	J41, J42	Differential Fan-Out Buffer Output	
33	2 nd Buffer Input	J46, J47	Alternative Fan-Out Buffer Input	
34	VDDFO	J49	Power Source Selector for 8P34S1208I Fan-Out Buffer	
35	Buffer Input Select	J48	Select between CLK0 = FemtoClock 2 OUT0 and CLK1 = Buffer Input SMA pair.	

2.1 Schematic Diagrams



Figure 13. RC32504A Evaluation Board Schematics – Page 1



Figure 14. RC32504A Evaluation Board Schematics – Page 2



Figure 15. RC32504A Evaluation Board Schematics – Page 3

RENESAS



Figure 16. RC32504A Evaluation Board Schematics – Page 4

2.2 Bill of Materials

ltem	Qty	Reference	Value	Part Number	Manufacturer
1	1	C1	DNI_0.010uF	GRM155R71E103J	
2	2	C2,C3	DNI_C0402	DNI_C0402	
3	46	C4,C5,C6,C8,C9,C12,C13,C16,C17,C 20,C21,C25,C27,C30,C32,C36,C38,C4 0,C42,C50,C52,C55,C56,C57,C58,C59 ,C61,C62,C66,C67,C68,C73,C74,C75, C76,C77,C78,C79,C80,C86,C87,C89, C91,C98,C99,C100	0.1uF	GRM155R71C104KA88D	Murata Electronics
4	16	C7,C10,C11,C14,C15,C18,C19,C22,C 81,C82,C83,C84,C92,C93,C101,C102	4700pF	GRM1557U1A472JA01D	Murata Electronics
5	18	C23,C24,C26,C28,C31,C33,C34,C37, C39,C41,C43,C44,C46,C47,C51,C53, C54,C90	10uF	GRM188D70J106MA73D	Murata Electronics
6	2	C29,C35	4.7uF	ZRB15XR61A475ME01	
7	1	C60	DNI_47pF	GRM1555C1E470J	Murata Electronics
8	1	C63	47pF	GRM1555C1E470J	Murata Electronics
9	2	C64,C65	27pF	GRM1555C1E270J	Murata Electronics



Item	Qty	Reference	Value	Part Number	Manufacturer	
10	2	C85,C88	1uF	GCM155C71A105KE38D	Murata Electronics	
11	1	C97	0.010uF	GRM155R71E103J	Murata Electronics	
12	2	D1,D2	LED Green	APT3216CGCK		
13	1	D3	1N4448HLP	1N4448HLP		
14	21	FB1,FB2,FB3,FB4,FB5,FB6,FB7,FB8, FB9,FB10,FB11,FB12,FB13,FB14,FB1 5,FB16,FB17,FB18,FB19,FB20,FB21	600	BLM18AG601SN1D	Murata	
15	3	FID1,FID2,FID3	Fiducial	Fiducial DNI		
16	4	GND_J1,GND_J2,GND_J3,GND_J4	DNI Headerstrip 1X1	DNI 1x1		
17	2	J1,J45	SMA_JACK_STR_50	733910070	Molex	
18	14	J2,J3,J4,J6,J7,J9,J10,J12,J13,J15,J41, J42,J46,J47	Cinch_142_0701_851	142_0701_851	Johnson	
19	1	J16	Banana Black	571-0100		
20	8	J17,J18,J19,J20,J22,J23,J26,J49	Header 2X2	499-10-202-10- 009000		
21	1	J21	Banana Red	571-0500		
22	4	J24,J27,J28,J29	Standoff 20mm	R30-1612000		
23	4	J25,J30,J32,J33	Headerstrip 2X3	10897062	Molex	
24	1	J31	USB Type C	12401598E4#2A	Amphenol	
25	3	J34,J35,J48	Headerstrip 1X3	22-28-4035	Molex	
26	4	J36,J37,J38,J39	Headerstrip 1X2	22-28-4023	Molex	
27	11	R1,R15,R16,R17,R18,R19,R20,R21,R 22,R71,R72	50	ERA-2AEB49R9X	Panasonic	
28	8	R2,R3,R4,R5,R7,R8,R9,R10	0	ERJ-2GE0R00	Panasonic	
29	2	R6,R26	220	CRCW0603220RFK	Vishay	
30	2	R11,R12	DNI_50	ERA-2AEB49R9X	Panasonic	
31	2	R13,R14	DNI_R0402	DNI_R0402		
32	4	R23,R24,R25,R48	1	RC0402FR-071RL	Yageo	
33	5	R31,R32,R41,R42,R63	4.70K	CRCW04024K70FK	Vishay	
34	12	R33,R39,R43,R45,R46,R50,R51,R52, R54,R55,R56,R57	10.0K	RCG040210K0FK	Yageo	
35	4	R34,R35,R37,R38	10	RC0402FR-0710RL	Yageo	
36	1	R36	5.10K	CRCW04025K10FK	Vishay	
37	1	R40	12.0K	CRCW040212K0FK	Vishay	

RC32504A / RC22504A Evaluation Board Manual

Item	Qty	Reference	Value	Part Number	Manufacturer
38	2	R44,R47	DNI_0	ERJ-2GE0R00	Panasonic
39	1	R53	27.0K	CRCW040227K0FK	Vishay
40	2	R58,R59	DNI_0.00	ERJ-2GE0R00	Panasonic
41	2	R60,R61	0	ERJ-2GE0R00	Panasonic
42	9	R62,R64,R65,R66,R67,R68,R69,R70, R73	100	CRCW0402100RFK	Vishay
43	1	U2	RC32504A	RC32504A	Renesas
44	1	U3	BSS138	BSS138	On Semi
45	1	U6	FT232HQ	FT232HQ-REEL	FTDI
46	1	U7	Crystal 12MHz	ABM8G-12.000MHZ- 18-D2Y-T	Abracon
47	1	U8	PCA9517	PCA9517	Texas Instruments
48	1	U9	Crystal 50MHz	EXS00A-CG03550	NDK America
49	2	U10,U11	RAA214020	RAA214020	Renesas
50	1	U12	8P34S1208I	8P34S1208I	Renesas

3. Ordering Information

Part Number	Description
RC32504A-EVK	RC32504A / RC22504A Evaluation Board; A-male to USB-C cable.

4. Revision History

Revision	Date	Description
1.0	Apr 21, 2021	Initial release.

IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

RENESAS ELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES ("RENESAS") PROVIDES TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND RELIABILITY DATA (INCLUDING DATASHEETS), DESIGN RESOURCES (INCLUDING REFERENCE DESIGNS), APPLICATION OR OTHER DESIGN ADVICE, WEB TOOLS, SAFETY INFORMATION, AND OTHER RESOURCES "AS IS" AND WITH ALL FAULTS, AND DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD-PARTY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS.

These resources are intended for developers who are designing with Renesas products. You are solely responsible for (1) selecting the appropriate products for your application, (2) designing, validating, and testing your application, and (3) ensuring your application meets applicable standards, and any other safety, security, or other requirements. These resources are subject to change without notice. Renesas grants you permission to use these resources only to develop an application that uses Renesas products. Other reproduction or use of these resources is strictly prohibited. No license is granted to any other Renesas intellectual property or to any third-party intellectual property. Renesas disclaims responsibility for, and you will fully indemnify Renesas and its representatives against, any claims, damages, costs, losses, or liabilities arising from your use of these resources. Renesas' products are provided only subject to Renesas' Terms and Conditions of Sale or other applicable terms agreed to in writing. No use of any Renesas resources expands or otherwise alters any applicable warranties or warranty disclaimers for these products.

(Disclaimer Rev.1.01)

Corporate Headquarters

TOYOSU FORESIA, 3-2-24 Toyosu, Koto-ku, Tokyo 135-0061, Japan www.renesas.com

Trademarks

Renesas and the Renesas logo are trademarks of Renesas Electronics Corporation. All trademarks and registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Contact Information

For further information on a product, technology, the most up-to-date version of a document, or your nearest sales office, please visit <u>www.renesas.com/contact-us/</u>.